
 

Environmental Advisory                                Lower Saucon Township                                     August 14, 2012 

Council                                                                          Minutes                                                                   7:00 PM 

 

 

I. OPENING 

 

CALL TO ORDER:  The Environmental Advisory Council meeting of Lower Saucon Township was 

called to order on Tuesday, August 14, 2012 at 7:03 P.M., at 3700 Old Philadelphia Pike, Bethlehem, PA, 

with Sandra Yerger, Chairman, presiding.   

   

 ROLL CALL:   
 Members:  Chair, Sandra Yerger; Tom Maxfield, Colin Guerra, Ted Beardsley, Laura Ray (arrived at 7:11 

P.M.) and Allan Johnson.  Associate Members:  Glenn Kaye; Absent – Dru Germanoski and Hazem 

Hijazi.  Planner:  – Absent (not needed); Hellertown Liaison:  Absent - Terry Boos; Jr. Council 

Member:  Vacant. 

 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 

Mrs. Yerger said Tom McCormick has resigned from the EAC as he’s moving to Florida.  We will be 

moving someone up to the voting position. 

 

II. OPEN SPACE SUB-COMMITTEE 
 

A. PROPERTY UPDATES 

 

Mr. Beardsley said there has been no activity.  He has a suggestion with the Marson property.  He 

doesn’t know what the status is, but Mr. Marson is moving forward.  When the time comes to 

actually give him a check, we should do it at a Township Council meeting and make a ceremony 

out of it.  We should do a press release and make sure the newspapers get it.  Mrs. Yerger agreed 

that it was a good idea.  She said we did get the Benner-Whitmore property, which was in the 

Township newsletter.  It was 78 acres.   

 

Mr. Maxfield said he forwarded Mrs. Yerger some information that Chris Garges gave him on 

property I.D. for Countryside Lane.  He was interested in getting that moving somehow.  Mrs. 

Yerger said what they realized was that the phone number was not right.  They have finally gotten 

the correct phone number and will now contact the person.  They will get moving on that.  Mr. 

Maxfield said the person is interested in preservation.  We just want to confirm that he is. 

  

III. NEW BUSINESS - None 

 

IV. DEVELOPER ITEMS 
 

A. ALL WYDNOR CELL TOWER SITE PLAN #SP 01-12 – 3693 HICKORY HILL ROAD 

 

Mrs. Yerger said you got a little bit of preliminary information in your packet.  The EAC group 

looked at the plans.  This is off of Hickory Hill Road close to where I-78 bisects.   

 

Mr. Maxfield said there’s a sliver of ground and then there’s some development downhill from 

that.  There’s a road in between the two.  It’s a PPL site and has existing towers.  He thinks there is 

some kind of structure there already, so it wouldn’t be any unusual for that site.  He said there may 

be no other cell towers there.  The others are power towers.   

 

Mrs. Yerger said to construct a mono-pole.  We have a lot of co-existing locations on other poles.  

This is not a co-location on an existing pole.  It will be a construction of a new mono-pole.  At 

some point, they received a variance.  That’s what it references – a use variance was received.  It 

doesn’t say when it was received.  It says conditional use approval is not required.   

 



Environmental Advisory Council 

August 14, 2012  

 

Page 2 of 5 

Mr. Maxfield said just at the last Council meeting.  Mrs. Yerger said this will be on the Planning 

Commission on August 23, 2012.   

 

There were nine residents that were present.  Mrs. Yerger said if you would like to make public 

comment, please go to the microphone and state your name.  The residents were concerned about 

the cell tower being so close to their neighborhood.  The residents looked at the plans and asked 

several questions, which were answered by Mrs. Yerger and Mr. Maxfield.  Mrs. Yerger 

recommended that they go to the Planning Commission meeting on August 23, 2012.  The 

residents did not make any public comment to be recorded into the minutes.  Mr. Maxfield said 

there is information at the Township that was submitted.  It shows coverage and all sorts of things.  

You can come into the Township and pay to get the information.  There is a whole packet that they 

submitted. 

 

The residents left the meeting.  After considerable discussion by the EAC about the cell tower, a 

motion was made because Mr. Maxfield said residents showed up who were concerned about the 

placement of the tower and the effect on their neighborhood.  Mr. Maxfield said we should ask that 

Council or the Planning Commission look into their concerns.  They came out here as a group and 

should be recognized. 

 

MOTION BY: Mr. Maxfield moved that the EAC would like to recommend to Council and the Planning 

Commission, through Council, that they look into a list of concerns presented by nine residents 

that showed up at the August 14, 2012 EAC meeting including eye sore issues, emissions, 

lightning, etc. 

SECOND BY: Mr. Johnson 

ROLL CALL: 6-0 
 

V. UPDATES/REPORTS 
 

A. GIS SYSTEM – CRITERIA FOR OPEN SPACE FOR STUDENTS OF MR. JOHN 

WILSON – LAFAYETTE COLLEGE 

 

Mrs. Yerger said she doesn’t think Diane got anything from any of the EAC members.  Mr. 

Johnson said he sent an email to John Wilson recommending or suggesting that one of the possible 

projects would be to map out the trails on the Township’s Dravecz property. Another one was to 

look into possibly adding or coming up with a way to attach the photos that were taken through the 

Saucon Creek assessment study to the GIS data that was already created during the study process.  

There’s a way you can link it.  If you were using that particular data set, and the photos were linked 

to the data set or part of the data set.  He thinks it can be done because the woman who developed 

the GIS information for that study said it would be a good idea if that could be done.  He doesn’t 

know much about it to say how it would be done.   

 

Mrs. Yerger asked if anyone had any other potential projects they wanted to add?  You can always 

email her or Diane and pass this on to John Wilson.  Mr. Maxfield said when John was here, we 

talked about all the tribs that are unnamed and unmapped.  He said it would be a problem mapping 

them as you’d have pole out in the field to input the GIS information.  There are still plenty of little 

streams that show up on stream maps or waterway maps that don’t have any names.  He doesn’t 

know if that information is in GIS or what maps it’s in.  He had an idea that maybe what we might 

want to do is make a map of those tribs and put them under a number system rather than a name 

system so that we can refer to them.  If a proposal for a development comes in, then we know there 

are three tribs on there and they may not show up on the development plan and refer to them by 

number and access the information we need.  He thinks because they have the general information 

as 10,000 square foot as a cut-off, and ours goes down to 100 square foot as a cut-off, you are 

going to have guys down in the fields taking GIS readings.  He would definitely like to see where 

all the wetlands are, at least the larger ones that we don’t have mapped already.   



Environmental Advisory Council 

August 14, 2012  

 

Page 3 of 5 

Mr. Johnson said the Lehigh Valley Planning Commission (LVPC) on an annual basis comes out 

with a new data set for all the geography information in the Lehigh Valley.  Whether or not the 

Township has the latest data set, he doesn’t know.  It would be a good idea to buy the latest data set 

and check it out for tributaries before you go ahead and try to add new ones.  Mr. Maxfield said 

adding new ones is what he really didn’t want to do because we don’t want to get kids out there 

taking readings as that’s too onerous.  A catalog system of those that are on the map that are 

unnamed.  The naming process for streams is a ridiculously long process.   We could do a catalog 

system for just the Township, and doesn’t see it being a problem.   Mrs. Yerger said she doesn’t 

know if the kids could do this.  He’s looking for a learning process for them.  We could ask him.  

Mr. Maxfield said we have no information of where it dumps into, no information about what 

watershed it’s coming from.   

 

Mr. Johnson said if there’s a stream tributary in one of the data base files that LVPC created, then 

there’s probably a attributes table associated with that little line on the paper.  In the attributes table 

would be whatever they know about the stream.  Probably there would be a place in that attributes 

table for a name since most streams have names.  In that place, there would probably be no name or 

untitled.  From that, you could find out which little lines on the map are not named and then you’d 

have to come up with names.  They probably have a feature number if they are on the map, like 1, 

2, 3 or 4.   If you wanted to refer to it, you’d have to know that feature I.D. number is.  Mr. 

Maxfield said we’re talking all of Northampton County.  Mr. Johnsons said they get most of the 

photos from the air or satellite images.  He doesn’t know who transfers that information to a data 

set, whether the government does or someone in PA government does, or if LVPC does it, but it 

has to be so-called digitized and put into an attributes table.  Then the attributes table has to be 

attached to something they call a shape file or a layer and then that has to be published so people 

can put it in their GIS databases.  You have to be able to buy it somewhere.  Usually LVPC does a 

lot of that, and then people just buy that disk.  He saw it advertised, and it’s like $100.00. 

 

Mr. Maxfield said if there’s so much information out there, and the teacher doesn’t want the kids to 

really go out into the field and have to do inputting data, where are we going to go with this?  Mrs. 

Yerger said why don’t we start with a request to the Zoning Officer and see what’s the most LVPC 

data we have and go from there.  Mr. Maxfield said or what he could use that we don’t have.  Mrs. 

Yerger said we need to talk to the Zoning Officer and see what might be useful to Chris if we can 

get an outside source to do it, and/or what he already has.  It’s not a good idea to ask these kids do 

something that Chris already has at his disposal through one system or another.   

 

Mr. Beardsley asked when John Wilson needs this information.  Mrs. Yerger said by at least the 

next meeting.  If you have ideas, just send them to John Wilson.  Diane will send you his email.  If 

it’s something he already has and is redundant, he will tell you.  She would encourage you to do it 

ASAP and then they can recap it at the September meeting.   

 

Mr. Maxfield said he’ll see Chris Garges tomorrow night and he’ll speak to him and find out.  It 

seems like the smart way to go, what do we need that we don’t have.   

 

B. HELLERTOWN-LOWER SAUCON TOWNSHIP COMMUNITY DAY – SATURDAY, 

AUGUST 18, 2012 – 10AM – 5PM 

 

Mrs. Yerger said the Township will have a booth.  Jack will be there, so the EAC will have some 

brochures set out “Return on the Environment” and the recycling flyers.  She will get copies of 

some other information to set out and Mr. Maxfield will drop them off at the Township.  The 

Township is taking everything over on Thursday.  Ms. Ray said do we have any information on the 

roads that need to be adopted?  Diane said there are six or seven roads left.  Mrs. Yerger asked 

Diane to make a list of roads that are available for adoption and set that out at Community Day. 

 

 



Environmental Advisory Council 

August 14, 2012  

 

Page 4 of 5 

 

VI. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 

A. REVIEW AND APPROVAL OF JULY 10, 2012 MINUTES 

 

Page 1, line 39, change the word eight to weight at the end of the line. 

Page 2, line 26, first word deep should be changed to develop. 

Page 3, line 42, after the words boot, there’s an o, change it to on. 

Page 4, line 21, the word fro, change to from. 

Page 5, line 33 should read those sections were referred to as reaches. 

Page 5, line 36 should read, we could look on a map 

Page 5, line 42, second word on should be of. 

Page 5, line 53, in after the word report and in front of the word She, should read made that thick 

report if she doesn’t’ know 
Page 6, line 7 should read Mr. Wilson said he can provide them and recommend a book for the 

EAC. 
Page 7, line 28, after the word plant, put a ? mark. 

Page 8, line 31, the word toxics should be toxins. 

Page 9, line 50 and 51 should read “It’s not their word, it’s what they have to do. 

Page 10, line 5, change the word fro to from.  Ms. Ray said it says “a permanent solution 

Page 10, line 41 should read “He was given a copy of the storage tanks plan. 

Page 10, line 42, take out the word “not”.  Same line, entail should be email notice 

Page 16, line 24, the word “to” should be changed to do 

Page 18, line 19, the word three’s should be there’s 
 

MOTION BY: Ms. Ray moved for approval of the July 10, 2012 minutes, with corrections. 

SECOND BY: Mr. Beardsley 

ROLL CALL: 6-0 

 

VII. OLD/MISCELLANEOUS BUSINESS – None 

 

VIII. TERRY BOOS – HELLERTOWN REPRESENTATIVE – REPORT – Absent 

   

IX. NON-AGENDA ITEM 

 Mrs. Yerger said she has some brochures/flyers if anyone wants to take a look at them.  If  you are 

interested in signing up for them, let Jack know. 

 Mrs. Yerger said Waste Management in Northampton County are working with DCNR and they 

converted a lot of their landfill to grasslands which attract butterflies. They are doing a walk on a 

landfill.  The upside to some of the grasses is they will absorb some of the toxins and convert it.  

It’s something we had encouraged the landfill to do a couple of years ago, so maybe it’s something 

we can look at again.  The walk is this Saturday.   

 Mrs. Yerger said there is going to be a Trails conference and they are going to have part of the 

Saucon Trail on the agenda.  It’s on a Wednesday and Thursday and not expensive.  It’s about $20 

for one day.  If you are interested let Jack know. She will send everyone the information.   

 Mr. Johnson said at last EAC meeting we recommended that we ask Wildlands Conservancy to 

correct the reports.  He wonders if we did ask them and if they sent something back.  Mrs. Yerger 

said Jack said he was going to send a letter to Wildlands.  That’s the last she heard, and she will 

check with Jack.  Mr. Johnson said it would be nice to get everything straight.  Mr. Maxfield said 

once it sits around long enough, it becomes a record.  Mr. Johnson said he was talking in the 

minutes and maybe he was wrong, so he’d like Wildlands to straighten it all out so it’s on the 

record and correct. 

 

X. PUBLIC COMMENT – None 

 



Environmental Advisory Council 

August 14, 2012  

 

Page 5 of 5 

XI. ADJOURNMENT 

 

MOTION BY: Ms. Ray moved for adjournment.  The time was 8:16 P.M. 

SECOND BY: Mr. Maxfield 

ROLL CALL: 6-0 

 

 

 

___________________________ 

Sandra Yerger, Chair 


